
 

AGENDA 

FINANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY APRIL 15, 2025 
6:00 PM 

CITY HALL COMMUNITY ROOM 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Committee Members: Vice Mayor Alexander Pedersen, Councilmember Margaux Morgan, 
Chairperson Anthony Rovai, Vice Chairperson Matt Arthur, Keith Cahalen, Emeline Nguyen, Leslie 
Neilsen 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS (No action may be taken) 

The Chair may announce and set time limits at the beginning of each agenda item.  
The Committee Members may not discuss Oral Communications to any significant degree but 
may request issues raised be placed on a future agenda. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS The Chair may announce and set time limits for speakers at the beginning of each 
agenda item. 
 
 
Topic Who Min.

A. Approval of Minutes – Meeting of Feb. 18, 2025 All 5 

B. Quarterly Investment Report Fin Dir 20 

C. FY 2025-26 Proposed Budget Update  Fin Dir 30 

D. Discussion of Items for Next Agenda All 5 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Notice: The Finance Advisory Committee meets on the Tuesday every other month at 6:00 PM in the Community 
Room in City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The Finance Advisory Committee Agenda is available on the City's 
website: www.cityofcapitola.org/ on Friday prior to the Tuesday meeting. If you need additional information, 
please contact the Finance Department at (831) 475-7300. 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City 
Council Chambers.  Should you require special accommodation to participate in the meeting due to a disability, 
please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300. In an effort 
to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 

Appeals: Any person who believes that a final action of this advisory body has been taken in error may appeal 
that decision to the City Council. Appeals must be in writing and delivered to the City Clerk’s Office within ten 
(10) working days from the time of the board’s decision. The notice of appeal shall set forth appellant’s name, 
phone number, address to which notices may be sent to the appellant, and the grounds upon which the appeal 
is made. 



 

 

 

MINUTES 

FINANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY FEBRUARY 18, 2025 
6:00 PM 

CITY HALL COMMUNITY ROOM 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Committee Members Present: Vice Mayor Alexander Pedersen, Councilmember Morgan, Keith 
Cahalen, Emeline Nguyen, Matt Arthur, Leslie Neilsen 
 
Committee Members Absent: Anthony Rovai 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS  
None. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS  
None. 
 
Topic 

A. Introductions of Committee members 

B. Oath of Office, Code of Conduct, Bylaws 

Committee members took the oath of office and received copies of the FAC bylaws and code of 
conduct. 

C. Appointment of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 

Staff provided a brief report on the appointment of a chairperson and vice chairperson. 
Committee member Neilsen moved that the committee appoint committee member Rovai as 
chairperson, seconded by committee member Nguyen, motion approved unanimously. 
Committee member Nguyen moved that the committee appoint committee member Arthur as 
vice chairperson, seconded by committee member Cahalen, motion unanimously approved.   

D. Approval of Minutes – Meetings of Nov. 19, 2024 

Minutes moved by Vice Chairperson Arthur and seconded by committee chair Coffman. Minutes 
unanimously approved. 

E. 2025 FAC Meeting Calendar 

Staff presented the 2025 regular meeting calendar with by-monthly meetings in Feb., Apr., 
June, Aug., Oct., and Dec. Staff also advised the committee that there is likely to be at least one 
special budget meeting in May. 

F. Mid-year budget update 

Staff provided an update on budget vs. actual revenues and expenditures through Dec. 31, 
2024, summarizing that revenues were tracking slightly lower than budget while expenditures 
were tracking on budget. 

G. Discussion of Items for Next Agenda 

Proposed FY 2025-26 Budget 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  Vice chairperson Arthur adjourned the meeting at 7:15 PM.  



Finance Advisory Committee
Agenda Report 
Meeting: April 15, 2025 

From: Finance Department 

Subject: FY 2024-25 3rd Quarter Investment Report 
 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report from staff.  

 
Background: California Government Code §53630 et seq. contains State requirements for the 
deposit of City funds. Government Code §53635 requires that all money belonging to, or in the 
custody of, a local agency be deposited in certain allowable instruments. The current Investment 
Policy was approved by the City Council on August 9, 2001, by adoption of Resolution No. 3149, 
affirming the City’s Investment Policy. This resolution was then incorporated into the City’s 
Administrative Policies. The California Government Code requires a city to annually review its 
investment policy. 
 
Discussion: The California Debt and Investment Advisory Committee annually updates the Local 
Agency Investment Guidelines which lists the allowable investment options for local public 
agencies. The City’s current investment policy is considered conservative, permitting the City to 
invest in seven of the twenty-five investment instruments allowable by the California Government 
Code. Understanding the order of importance, the investment policy shall: 

1. Provide for the safety of the funds 
2. Assure the liquidity of the funds 
3. Acquire earnings of the funds 

 
The City’s FY 2024-25 Investment Policy was confirmed by the City Council on June 13, 2024.  
City investment funds shall only be invested in the following permitted investments: 

 1.     State of California Local Agency Investment Fund 

 2.     U.S. Treasury Obligations  

 3.     U.S. Agency Obligations 

 4.     Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 

5.   Placement Service Deposits 

6.   Placement Service Certificates of Deposit 

7.   Guaranteed Investment Contracts (GIC) of AAA quality, for a term not to exceed 
  fifteen (15) months* 
 

 

 

 



As of March 31, 2025, the City had approximately $8.4 million in cash and investments as follows: 

 Wells Fargo - $1.1 million 

 Santa Cruz County Bank - $2.9 million 

LAIF - $1.4 million 

 Investments - $3.0 million 

 

Additionally, the City had the following amounts in Retirement Trust accounts:    

CalPERS Section 115 Pension Trust - $1.6 million  

 Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Trust - $822,000 

 

As of March 31st, the City has earned approximately $188,720 in LAIF interest earnings vs. 
$157,350 during the same period in the prior year, $75,300 of interest earnings from CD’s, 
however this is below last year’s earnings of $89,200, and $15,900 from West Coast Community 
Bank. 

 
Fiscal Impact: None 
 
 
Attachment: Quarterly Investment Statement 

 

Report Prepared By: Report Prepared By: Jim Malberg, Finance Director 

































Finance Advisory Committee
Agenda Report 
Meeting: April 15, 2025 

From: Finance Department 

Subject: Fiscal Year (FY) 2025-26 Proposed Budget Update 
 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report from staff. 

 
Background: On March 13th the City Council adopted the FY 2025-26 budget calendar kicking of 
this year’s budget cycle. Pursuant to this calendar, the Proposed Budget will be distributed on 
Friday, May 2, 2025, and the presentation of the City Budget to the Finance Advisory Committee 
(FAC) is scheduled for a Special Meeting on Tuesday, May 13, 2025. This is a tentative schedule 
that may be changed as necessary by the City Manager and/or City Council.  

Discussion: Each year finance staff builds the budget from the dept. level up based on the 
requests from each dept. Budget worksheets were distributed on Mar. 27th with a due date of 
Friday April 18th. The worksheets will then be summarized and reviewed with the City Manager 
and dept. heads before combining them with the general fund revenues into the 1st draft of the 
budget document. 

Preliminary estimates include: 
 

 General fund revenues: 
 Property Tax – 5% growth based on information received from the County. 

o Property tax dollar allocation graph attached. 
 Sales Tax – 2.9% growth based on estimates from HdL 

o Anticipate additional $1.1 million from Measure Y 
 9.25% sales tax allocated: 

 State – 6.00% 
 SC County – 1.50% 
 Capitola – 1.00% Bradley Burns 

      0.25% Measure O permanent district tax 
      0.50% Measure Y ten-year district tax 

 Transient Occupancy Tax – slight decrease based on actual activity 
 Measure Q - $200,000 annual new revenue 

o May be used for Water Conservation & Quality, Wildfire Risk Reduction, 
Wildlife & Habitat Protection, Clean Beaches & Coastal Protection, and 
Community Resilience (Parks, Open Space, Recreation, etc.). 

 Measure S - $165,000 additional annual revenue for 20 years  
o Restricted for the Library 
o Can repay general fund $855,000 plus interest for Library project. 

 

 
 
 
 



General fund expenditures: 
 Personnel – 10% increase from prior year adopted budget, about 60% from 

impacts of Measure Y and the other 40% from anticipated step increases and 
negotiated cost of living adjustments. 

 Contract Services – utilizing a zero-based budgeting approach beginning with non-
discretionary contracts. 

o Legal fees increasing due to increase in Public Records Act requests as 
well as potential litigation 

 Potential recall election – estimated $50,000 - $75,000 
 
These are very preliminary estimates and may change as we learn new information. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Attachments: 

1. FY 2025-26 Adopted Budget Calendar 
2. Graph of property tax allocation 

Report Prepared By: Report Prepared By: Jim Malberg, Finance Director 



 

 

CITY OF CAPITOLA                       
BUDGET CALENDAR – 2025-26 FISCAL YEAR 

 

The City Manager and/or the City Council may change this tentative schedule.   
NOTE:  Some meetings may be cancelled if they become unnecessary based on prior sessions.  

Meeting 
Date 
2025 

Week/Day Nature of Meeting Description 

April 15 3rd Tuesday Finance Advisory Committee
Finance Advisory Committee to discuss 
proposed Budget 

May 2 1st Friday N/A Proposed budget distribution 

May 8 
 

2nd Thursday 
*Regular City Council 

 

May 13 2nd Tuesday 
Special Finance Advisory 

Committee 

Finance Advisory Committee to 
discuss proposed Budget and draft 
recommendations to Council

May 15 3rd Thursday *Special City Council 

Presentation of City Operating & CIP 
Budgets 

May 20 3rd Tuesday 
Special Finance Advisory 

Committee 
Committee Deliberations (if necessary) 

May 22 4th Thursday *Regular City Council  

May 29 5th Thursday *Special City Council Council Deliberations (If necessary) 

June 5 1st Thursday *Special City Council 
 
 Council Deliberations (If necessary) 

 

June 12 2nd Thursday 
*Regular City Council 

 

Reports from Finance:   
Appropriations Limit Resolution and  
Investment Policy 

June 17 3rd Tuesday Finance Advisory Committee 

Finance Advisory Committee to discuss 
proposed Budget and draft presentation

 
June 18 

 
3rd Wednesday *Special City Council 

Final City Council Budget deliberations 
(If necessary) 

June 26 4th Thursday 
*Regular City Council 

 
Final Adoption of the City Budget and 
Pertinent Resolutions 

NOTE: Special meetings will begin at 6:00 p.m., all Regular meetings begin at 6:00 p.m. Meetings with an asterisk 
(*) are held in the City Hall Council Chambers and will be televised “Live” on Charter Communications Cable 
Channel 8. The Finance Advisory Committee Meetings begins at 6:00 pm and are scheduled to be held in the 
Community Room.   





Finance 
Advisory 
Committee

April 15, 2025



Agenda

Topic Who Min.

A.  Approval of Minutes – Feb. 18, 2025 All 5

B.  Quarterly Investment Report Fin Dir 20

C.  FY 2025-26 Proposed Budget Update Fin Dir 30

D.   Discussion of items for next agenda All 5



Minutes – Feb. 18, 2025

 

A. Introductions of Committee members 

B. Oath of Office, Code of Conduct, Bylaws 

Committee members took the oath of office and received copies of the FAC bylaws and code of 
conduct. 

C. Appointment of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson 

Staff provided a brief report on the appointment of a chairperson and vice chairperson. 
Committee member Neilsen moved that the committee appoint committee member Rovai as 
chairperson, seconded by committee member Nguyen, motion approved unanimously. 
Committee member Nguyen moved that the committee appoint committee member Arthur as 
vice chairperson, seconded by committee member Cahalen, motion unanimously approved.   

D. Approval of Minutes – Meetings of Nov. 19, 2024 

Minutes moved by Vice Chairperson Arthur and seconded by Councilmember Morgan 
committee chair Coffman. Minutes unanimously approved. 

E. 2025 FAC Meeting Calendar 

Staff presented the 2025 regular meeting calendar with by-monthly meetings in Feb., Apr., 
June, Aug., Oct., and Dec. Staff also advised the committee that there is likely to be at least one 
special budget meeting in May. 

F. Mid-year budget update 

Staff provided an update on budget vs. actual revenues and expenditures through Dec. 31, 
2024, summarizing that revenues were tracking slightly lower than budget while expenditures 
were tracking on budget. 

G. Discussion of Items for Next Agenda 

Proposed FY 2025-26 Budget 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT:  Vice chairperson Arthur adjourned the meeting at 7:15 PM.  



FY 2024-25 
3rd Quarter 
Investment 

Report 



Cash – Mar. 31, 2025

Total Cash Balances 5,358,095.51    



Current Investments – Mar. 31, 2025



Current Investments Mar. 31, 2025

• FY 2025 3rd Qtr. Summary
• $8.4 million in cash & investments
• Wells Fargo - $1.1 million

• Santa Cruz County Bank - $2.9 million

• LAIF - $1.4 million

• Investments - $3.0 million

• $2.4 million - Retirement Trusts
• CalPERS Section 115 Pension Trust - $1.6 million

• Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Trust - $822,000

• $278,920 - Interest Earnings Y-T-D
• LAIF - $187,720
• CD’s - $75,300
• West Coast Community Bank - $15,900



Fiscal Year 2025-26
Proposed Budget 

Update



Key Dates

• May 2nd  –  Proposed Budget Distributed

• May 13th – Special FAC Meeting

• May 15th – Special City Council Meeting

• May 20th – Special FAC Meeting

• May 29th – Special City Council Meeting

• June 5th  –  Special City Council Meeting

• June 17th – Regular FAC Meeting

• June 18th – Special City Council Meeting

• June 26th – Regular City Council Meeting



Preliminary 
Estimates
• Property Tax 5% growth

• City receives 7.47%



Preliminary Estimates

• Sales Tax
• 2.9% growth

• Anticipate additional $1.1 million from Measure Y
• 9.25% sales tax allocated:

• State – 6.00%
• SC County – 1.50%
• Capitola – 1.00% Bradley Burns

              0.25% Measure O permanent district tax
                 0.50% Measure Y ten-year district tax



Preliminary Estimates

Transient Occupancy Tax Slight decrease based on 
actual activity

Measure Q - $200,000 
annual new revenue

May be used for Water Conservation & 
Quality, Wildfire Risk Reduction, Wildlife & 
Habitat Protection, Clean Beaches & Coastal 
Protection, and Community Resilience 
(Parks, Open Space, Recreation, etc.).

Measure S - $165,000 add ’l 
annual revenue for 20 yrs.

Restricted for the Library

• Can repay general fund $855,000 plus 
interest for Library project.



Preliminary Estimates

Personnel 

10% increase from prior 
year adopted budget

60% from impacts of 
Measure Y and the other 
40% from anticipated step 
increases and negotiated 
cost of living adjustments.

Contract Services 

Utilizing a zero-based 
budgeting approach 
beginning with non-
discretionary contracts.

• Legal fees increasing due to 
increase in Public Records 
Act requests as well as 
potential litigation

Potential recall election  

Estimated 

$50,000 - $75,000



Agenda items 
for 

next meeting




